[bookmark: _Toc436945523] Appendix 1. List of targeted websites and agencies included in the grey literature searches.
	Country / Organisation 
	Website link

	Ireland

	Mental Health Commission Ireland
	www.mhcirl.ie/

	National Suicide Research Foundation
	www.nsrf.ie 

	National Office for Suicide Prevention
	www.hse.ie/eng/services/list/4/mental-health-services/nosp/

	Health Information Quality Authority 
	www.hiqa.ie 

	Australia

	Department of Health Australia
	www.health.gov.au 

	Suicide Prevention Australia
	www.suicidepreventionaust.org/

	Australian Institute for Suicide Research and Prevention
	www.griffith.edu.au/griffith-health/australian-institute-suicide-research-prevention

	Mental Health Commission Australia
	www.mentalhealthcommission.gov.au/ 

	Analysis and Policy Observatory
	https://apo.org.au/ 

	Canada

	Department of Health Canada
	www.canada.ca/en/health-canada.html 

	Canadian Association for Suicide Prevention
	www.suicideprevention.ca/ 

	Centre for Suicide Prevention Canada
	www.suicideinfo.ca/ 

	Canadian Electronic Library
	https://my.canadianelectroniclibrary.ca/ 

	United Kingdom

	Department of Health and Social Care UK
	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-of-health-and-social-care

	National Suicide Prevention Alliance UK
	https://www.nspa.org.uk/ 

	Centre for Suicide Research (Oxford)
	https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/csr

	National Health Service (NHS) Evidence database
	https://www.evidence.nhs.uk/ 

	New Zealand

	Ministry of Health New Zealand 
	www.health.govt.nz 

	Ministry of Social development New Zealand 
	www.msd.govt.nz 

	USA

	US Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion 
	www.health.gov/about-us 

	US National Institute of Health 
	www.nih.gov  

	Centres for Disease Control and Prevention 
	www.cdc.gov 

	American Psychological Society 
	www.apa.org 

	Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ)
	https://www.ahrq.gov/ 
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Appendix 2. Data extraction table with level of evidence assessment (n=18).
	Author(s), Year & Country
	Aim
	Design
	Sample & Setting
	Awareness Campaign/ Intervention
	Key outcome(s) of relevance
	Key outcome measure(s) 
	Findings a
	SIGN level of evidence b

	Cross sectional studies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Briggs (2018)

England


	To determine emergency nurses’ knowledge about suicide risk factors
	Cross sectional study
	38 emergency department nurses working across two emergency departments. 
	Not Applicable
	Knowledge of suicide risk factors
	Knowledge of 8 known risk factors measured using a Likert scale.
	1. Overall, 44.7% of respondents (n=17) were unsure of at least one risk factor. The least recognised risk factor was
family history of suicide.

2.  Not Applicable

	3

	Draper et al. (2018)

Australia
	To compare awareness of suicide risk in deceased persons among healthcare professionals and next-of kin 
	Cross sectional study 
	74 healthcare professional who had contact with persons that had died by suicide in the month prior to their death 
	Not Applicable
	Knowledge about deceased persons’ suicide warning signs 
	Author-designed questionnaire containing questions about the length of contact with the deceased; the circumstances and details of their last contact with the deceased; the deceased person’s history of mental health diagnoses and suicide attempts or ideation; and suicide warning signs. 
	1. The next of kin of persons that died by suicide had significantly more knowledge about suicide warning signs in the month before their death than healthcare professionals (p<0.05). 
	3

	Jiao (2014)

China 

	To assess knowledge about suicide among psychiatrists 
	Cross sectional study 
	179 Psychiatrists working at six healthcare settings in Shanghai, China 
	Not Applicable 
	Knowledge of suicide risk factors 
	Scale of Public Attitudes about Suicide (SPAS) (three items relating to basic knowledge of suicide)
	1. Most (91%) of the psychiatrists indicated the correct response to the statement “persons who have attempted suicide may have subsequent suicidal behaviour”. However only 37% indicated a correct response to the statement “talking about suicide-related issues with an individual would not precipitate suicidal behaviour” and 41% a correct response to the statement, “those who state that they intend to kill themselves may actually do it”.

2. Not Applicable
	3

	Lee et al. (2019)

South Korea


	To investigate awareness and attitude regarding suicide among clinicians treating patients with spinal cord injury
	Cross sectional study 
	29 attending physicians working at the Kyungpook National University Hospital
	Not Applicable 
	Awareness and knowledge of suicide risk in patients with spinal cord injury
	Author-designed questionnaire, including items from other questionnaires, including a number of items regarding perception of and attitude toward suicide, and awareness of suicide risk in patients with spinal cord injury.
	1. In general, non-surgical physicians had more awareness and knowledge of suicide risk in patients with spinal cord injury compared to surgical physicians. Higher age was also associated with greater awareness and knowledge.

2.  Not Applicable


	3

	Michail et al. (2017)

England 


	To examine GPs clinical expertise in assessing, communicating
with, and managing suicidal young people aged 14–25
	Cross sectional study 
	70 GPs from practices across Nottingham city
	Not Applicable
	Knowledge
of published guidelines in suicide prevention

Knowledge of risk factors and warning
signs of suicide in young people
	Author-designed questionnaire containing 1 item for
knowledge of published guidelines; 13 items for knowledge
of risk factors; and 10 items for knowledge of warning
signs;
	1. 60% of GPs were not aware of any published guidelines
(local, national, or international) on suicide prevention.  Overall, experienced GPs demonstrated high levels of knowledge of suicide risk factors, with participants correctly identifying 71% of item responses for suicide risk factors in young people. However, they had lower levels of knowledge for warning signs that might indicate heightened
risk, with only 51% of all item responses for warning signs of suicide in young people being correctly identified. 
In summary, GPs find it challenging to accurately recognise the signs that
might indicate heightened risk of suicide in young people in the near future.

2.  Not Applicable
	3

	Fry et al. 
(2019)

Australia


	To explore emergency nurses’ knowledge about suicide in older people.
	Cross sectional study
	136 emergency department nurses
	Not Applicable
	Knowledge of caring for the older suicidal person presenting to the emergency department
	A 28-item survey that was developed based on expert opinion (to ensure face validity) and published research.
	1. The majority of participants (n = 124, 91%) reported that they frequently managed suicidal behaviour and 80% (n=109) recognised suicide as a common event in Australia. However, only 51% (n = 69) recognised that suicide was a common event for older people. Respondents ranked male gender as the highest risk factor for suicide in older people. Previous self-harm, depression and hopelessness were also highly ranked. 
Overall, the results indicate that while some emergency nurses have a strong understanding of the risk of suicide in older people, there are nurses who have little awareness of the associated risks of suicide in older people.
A significant number of nurses reported low confidence when managing suicidal behaviour. 

2. Not Applicable 
	2-

	Qualitative and mixed-methods studies
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Granek et al. (2017)

Israel


	To identify oncologists', nurses', and social workers' strategies and barriers in identifying suicide risk in cancer patients.
	Qualitative study
(Grounded theory method)
	61 oncology healthcare professionals (HCPs) (oncologists, social workers and nurses) from 2 cancer centres 
	NA
	Knowledge of suicide risk
	Semi structured qualitative interviews
	1. HCPs, whether oncologists, nurses, or social workers, reported that they had a lack of training and knowledge about how to identify suicide risk in their cancer patients. HCPs reported that they learned from experience how to identify risk factors, rather than from any systematic or empirically based training. Related to a lack of training and knowledge, HCPs also noted that they may lack awareness about the need to identify risk of suicide in cancer patients.

2. Not Applicable


	3

	Michail and Tait 
(2016)

England


	To explore general practitioners’ views and
experiences of assessing, communicating with, and managing
suicidal young people.
	Qualitative 
study (focus groups)
	28 GPs from practices across Nottingham city 
	Not Applicable
	To inform the development of an educational intervention for GPs on youth suicide prevention 
	Questions informed by previous literature. 
	1. GPs reported feeling ill-equipped to assess and manage suicide risk in young people. Uncertainty about specific youth suicide predictors, as well as a weighting approach to accurately identify risk, emerged from GPs’ narratives. GPs also reported experiencing challenges related to the accurate recognition of warning signs and how to distinguish between signs indicating imminent suicide risk from behavioural and affective changes that form part of ‘normal adolescence’. This meant they often felt uncertain about management options and when to make a referral to secondary mental health services and how to appropriately respond to a ‘cry for help’ particularly when it comes to young people engaging in self-harming behaviour. GPs highlighted that although they are well informed about those factors associated with suicidality in young people, they are less confident about how risk factors can be applied to accurately identify risk
during consultations.

2. Not Applicable

	3

	Shah et al. (2016)

India

	To conduct a comprehensive needs assessment of primary healthcare professionals in order to develop a training program aimed at enhancing competencies in suicide risk assessment and management
	Mixed methods study
	N=144 primary health care professionals, from multiple primary care and community clinics in India 
	1 day suicide prevention training program
	Facts about suicide, risk factors for suicide, asking about suicidal behaviour, and helping a suicidal patient
Suicide risk assessment;
Comfort level in referring, assessing, and treating suicidal patients,
Competence level in referring, assessing, and treating suicidal patients;
Knowledge of suicide.
	Modified Intervention Knowledge Test (IKT)
(Tierney 1994)
	1. Knowledge about suicide, risk factors for suicide, asking
about suicidal behaviour, and helping a suicidal patient was
rated as low or medium 

2. Not Applicable 
	2-

	Manning et al. (2017)

England


	To determine the impact of a digital educational intervention on the knowledge of registered children’s nurses working with children and young people admitted with self-harm.
	Mixed Methods study
	98 children’s nurses working at a single tertiary children’s hospital, co-located in a large acute National Health Service (NHS) Trust.
	A digital educational programme hosted on an online platform accessible.  It comprised reusable learning objects that had been co-produced with service users, registered children’s nurses and academics.  The specific content varied across the three RLOs but information included was evidence-based and expert peer-reviewed as part of the development process. The content was delivered through a range of multimedia
	Knowledge of self-harm in children and young people
	An adapted 12-item, self-report questionnaire. Each item was rated as true, false or don’t know.
	1.Among nurses who completed the training, the mean number of correct responses to the Knowledge of Self-harm items was 6.7 out of 12 pre-training, and 8.7 out of 12 post-training.

2.  A statistically significant increase in knowledge about self-harm in children and young people was observed among nurses who completed the training. 
	3


	Systematic review
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Boukouvalas et al. (2019)

Australia


	To explore the current literature surrounding health care professionals’ knowledge of and attitudes towards suicide
	Systematic Review
	46 primary research publications
	Not Applicable. 
	Knowledge of suicide
The relationship between knowledge,
confidence, and attitudes
	IKT: Intervention Knowledge Test


	1. It was reported consistently across studies that increased knowledge led to more positive attitudes about suicide.

2. In the majority of included studies that explored suicide education and training, the findings illustrated that training led to improvements in knowledge. This review also suggests that knowing how to care for suicidal patients, and confidence in doing so, are two factors that shape healthcare professionals’ responses to suicidal behaviour. Knowledge also contributes towards improved attitudes towards suicidal patients.
	2++

	Before-and-after studies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Adrian et al. (2018)

USA


	To assess the impact of suicide prevention training, and the effect of a
post-training email reminder system, on mental health practitioners’ knowledge of  suicide 
	Controlled before-and-after study (with random allocation)
	83 mental health practitioners working at Seattle Children’s Hospital, including psychologists, social workers, mental health therapists and paediatric mental health specialists.  
	The suicide prevention training included a 6-hour training comprising: (1) descriptive epidemiology, (2) assessment strategies, (3) management of suicide risk, and (4) special populations and cultural considerations.  Participants were randomly assigned to an e-mail reminder that provided information related to the training or to no reminder 
	Knowledge of suicide risk factors. 
	Five-item suicide risk knowledge test.
	1. On the five-item suicide risk knowledge test, the mean number of incorrect scores among all participants pre-training was 1.6 (out of 5.0).

2. The suicide prevention training was not associated with any significant changes in suicide risk knowledge, but overall, all practitioners demonstrated increases in suicide assessment knowledge and improvements in attitudes for engaging in suicide risk assessments from pre- to post test, and gains were maintained at the 3-month follow-up.  The use of e-mail reminders was not associated with any additional changes.

	1-

	McFaul et al. (2014)

USA

	To evaluate the effectiveness of a suicide prevention toolkit for primary care providers in rural settings. 
	Un-controlled before-and-after study 
	454 primary care providers working in rural settings across multiple states in the USA
	The Suicide Prevention for Primary Care Practices is an online toolkit that contains information and tools to implement suicide prevention practices in primary care settings. It includes sections on educating clinicians and office staff and developing mental health partnerships, as well as patient management tools and patient education tools. The training uses the Toolkit  as the basis for the educational content, and expands on several sections to provide more depth on specific topics via videos, case vignettes, and role-plays.
	Preparedness to screen for suicidal risk.
Knowledge of suicidal behavior
	Author-designed questionnaire. Preparedness was assessed by eight items ranked on a 7-point Likert-type scale.
Knowledge was assessed using a 17-item quiz
on suicide behavior and facts. 

	1. The mean preparedness score pre-training was 4.15 (out of 7.0) and the mean knowledge score was 0.65 (total score not reported).  

2. The training was effective at preparing health care providers to screen patients for suicide risk, and it increased their knowledge about suicidal behaviour and appropriate practice for patients at risk of suicide.

	2-

	Painter et al. (2018)

USA


	To evaluate a training program for pharmacists that aimed to provide the skills necessary to recognize a crisis and the warning signs of suicide.
	Un-controlled before-and-after study
	77 pharmacists working in various settings across the USA
	A training session for pharmacists based on the Question, Persuade, and Refer (QPR) Gatekeeper Training Program. QPR is designed to provid the basic skills necessary to recognize a crisis and the warning signs of suicide to be able to refer someone to help. Four training sessions were conducted in person by at least 2 trainers in various locations. 
Each session was 1.5 hours long. 
	General perception and self-efficacy, around identifying and responding to symptoms of suicide. 

	Author-designed questionnaire.

The general perception construct was composed
of 10 true-or-false questions based on “Myths and Facts about
Suicide”.

There were 7
self-efficacy questions about confidence in identifying and
responding to symptoms of suicide. 

	1.  In the pretest for general perception, the mean score for correct responses was 80% (out of 10 questions), with 34% of respondents answering at least 90% of the questions
correctly.

2.  There was no statistically significant difference in respondents' general perception before and after attending the suicide prevention training. The training program was associated with an increase in respondents' self-efficacy in areas relating to detection of suicide signs, response to patients with suicidal thoughts, reassurance for patients, and provision of resources and referrals.
	2-

	Prabhakar et al. (2014)

USA

	To evaluate a new curriculum aimed at helping psychiatry residents learn more about suicide

	Un-controlled before-and-after study
	240 psychiatry residents 
	The intervention was a 90-minute training that included selected aspects of a patient suicide educational program called “Collateral Damages”. It included video vignettes, focused discussions, and a patient-based learning exercise.
	Awareness and understanding of issues related to patient suicide 

	Author-designed questionnaire composed of items measuring the trainees’ awareness and understanding of issues related to patient suicide such as common “facts,” awareness of common feelings, steps to take after completed patient suicide, support systems, documentation and risk-management
	1. Not Applicable

2. After completing the training, residents’ self-perceived knowledge of “issues related to suicide” significantly improved from 44% rating themselves as “very knowledgeable” or “knowledgeable” before the workshop to 69% after the session.
	2-

	Siau et al. (2018)

Malaysia


	To examine the effectiveness of the Question, Persuade, Refer (QPR) gatekeeper program on improving Malaysian health professionals’ knowledge and self-efficacy in relation to suicide prevention
	Controlled before-and-after study

	159 participants (doctors, nurses, assistant medical officers and hospital attendants) from major medical and surgical departments 
	The intervention was a 4-hour training program, led by a certified QPR instructor and co-facilitated by two consultant psychiatrists and a counselling psychologist.  The control group participants were not exposed to this training.
The material provided in the training was a 21-page QPR booklet and  a handout with additional information and two role-play vignettes. This handout included facts on the rates, patterns, methods and risk factors of suicides in Malaysia, and the possible cultural and religious values that could affect perceptions of suicidal patients. In addition, the training addressed the stressful working environment in the hospital setting, and how this could impact staff attitudes toward and treatment of suicidal patients.

	Self-perceived knowledge of facts about suicide and suicide prevention


	9-item QPR questionnaire 

	1. Not Applicable

2. Significant improvement occurred among intervention participants in terms of perceived knowledge, self-efficacy and understanding of/willingness to help suicidal patients immediately post-training and when compared to the control participants three months later. Improvements in declarative knowledge were not maintained at the three-month follow-up.
	2-

	Randomised controlled trials
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	de Beurs et al. (2015)

Netherlands


	To assess whether professionals benefited from an e-learning supported Train-the-Trainer (TtT-e) programme aimed at the application of the Dutch multidisciplinary practice guideline for the assessment of suicidal behaviour (PGSB).
	Multicentre cluster randomised controlled trial

(Adult Learning Theory and Diffusion of Innovation Theory)
	303 professionals (all registered nurses, psychologists, and psychiatrists) working across
Mental Health Institutes
	Multidisciplinary teams were trained by peers in the application of the PGSB via TtT-e. The training consisted of a one day, small group face-to-face training session and was supported by an additional e-learning module that lasted an hour
	Knowledge about suicidal behaviour
	The 7-item subscale ‘self-evaluation of knowledge about suicidal behaviour’ of the 14-item Question-Persuade-Refer-questionnaire
	1. Not Applicable

2. Significantly higher scores were seen in self-evaluation of knowledge in the intervention group than the control group (P<0.001). Effect size was large (1.0) Following the intervention, both nurses and psychiatrist/psychologists showed more self-evaluation of knowledge.
	1-

	vanLandschoot et al. (2017)

Belgium


	To examine the effects of a poster and accompanying evaluation and triage guide on knowledge, self-confidence and attitudes regarding suicidal thoughts and behaviours
	Multicentre cluster randomised controlled trial
	N=1171 health care staff in emergency and psychiatric departments
	Poster campaign- Flemish adaptation of the “Is Your Patient Suicidal?” poster that was originally developed by the Suicide Prevention Resource Centre (SPRC) in the United States
	Self-perceived knowledge about suicide




Objective knowledge about suicide (warning signs and risk factors)
	14-item Question, Persuade and Refer (QPR) questionnaire 

Suicide Information Test (SIT) 
	1. In the baseline sample, the mean score for self-evaluation of knowledge about suicide (QPR questionnaire) was 24.1 (out of 35.0). Almost half of the baseline sample (n = 241, 43.8%) rated their general understanding about suicide and suicide prevention as ‘high’ or ‘very high’.

2. The poster and accompanying evaluation and triage guide did not have an effect on knowledge about suicide
	1-

	a Key study findings extracted based on the following review questions:
1. What is staff’s awareness and/or knowledge of suicide and self-harm risk in healthcare settings?
2. What is the effect of strategies used to promote suicide and self-harm risk awareness and/or knowledge among staff in healthcare settings?
b Scottish Intercollegiate Guidelines Network (SIGN) provide checklists to assess the quality of: systematic reviews & meta-analyses, RCTs, cohort studies, case-control studies, diagnostic studies, economic studies. 1++ = high quality meta-analyses, systematic reviews of RCTs, or RCTs with a very low risk of bias; 1+ = well-conducted meta-analyses, systematic reviews, or RCTs with a low risk of bias; 1- = meta-analyses, systematic reviews, or RCTs with a high risk of bias; 2++ = high quality systematic reviews of case control or cohort studies / high quality case control or cohort studies with a low risk of confounding or bias and a high probability that the relationship is causal; 2+ = well-conducted case control or cohort studies with a low risk of confounding or bias and a moderate probability that the relationship is causal; 2- = case control or cohort studies with a high risk of confounding or bias and a significant risk that the relationship is not causal; 3 = non-analytic studies, e.g. case reports, case series; 4 = expert opinion.







Appendix 3. Quality Appraisal for each of the included studies
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Randomized Controlled Trials
Reviewer: EM + IH 						Date: 25/07/2019
Author: Adrian et al.				Year: 2018 		
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	NA

	1. Was true randomization used for assignment of participants to treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Was allocation to treatment groups concealed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Were treatment groups similar at the baseline?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were participants blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	
	□
	□

	5. Were those delivering treatment blind to treatment assignment? 
	□
	□
	
	□

	6. Were outcomes assessors blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	□
	
	□

	7. Were treatment groups treated identically other than the intervention of interest?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	9. Were participants analyzed in the groups to which they were randomized?
	
	□
	□
	□

	10. Were outcomes measured in the same way for treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	11. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	12. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□

	13. Was the trial design appropriate, and any deviations from the standard RCT design (individual randomization, parallel groups) accounted for in the conduct and analysis of the trial?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											

SIGN Grade: 1-
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Systematic Reviews and Research Syntheses
Reviewer: EM + MS 						Date: 17/07/2017 
Author: Boukouvalas et al. 		Year: 2019 			 
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Is the review question clearly and explicitly stated?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the inclusion criteria appropriate for the review question?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the search strategy appropriate?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were the sources and resources used to search for studies adequate?
	□
	□
	
	□

	5. Were the criteria for appraising studies appropriate?
	□
	□
	□
	

	6. Was critical appraisal conducted by two or more reviewers independently?
	□
	
	□
	□

	7. Were there methods to minimize errors in data extraction?
	□
	□
	
	□

	8. Were the methods used to combine studies appropriate?
	*
	□
	□
	□

	9. Was the likelihood of publication bias assessed?
	□
	
	□
	□

	10. Were recommendations for policy and/or practice supported by the reported data?
	□
	□
	□
	□

	11. Were the specific directives for new research appropriate?
	
	□
	□
	□


 Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
* Narrative synthesis due to much heterogeneity between studies – meta analysis not performed. 
Quality of studies not assessed. 	

SIGN Grade: 2 + +



JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: EM + JG						Date: 16/07/2019 


Author:	Briggs 			Year: 2018 			 


	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	□
	

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	□
	□
	□
	

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	□
	
	□
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	□
	
	□
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
										
											

SIGN Grade: 3

JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Randomized Controlled Trials
Reviewer: CD + CK 				Date:		16/07/2019	

Author		deBeurs			Year:	2015	
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	NA

	1. Was true randomization used for assignment of participants to treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Was allocation to treatment groups concealed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Were treatment groups similar at the baseline?
	□
	
	□
	□

	4. Were participants blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	
	□
	□

	5. Were those delivering treatment blind to treatment assignment? 
	□
	
	□
	□

	6. Were outcomes assessors blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	********
	□
	□

	7. Were treatment groups treated identically other than the intervention of interest?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	9. Were participants analyzed in the groups to which they were randomized?
	□
	□
	
	□

	10. Were outcomes measured in the same way for treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	11. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	12. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□

	13. Was the trial design appropriate, and any deviations from the standard RCT design (individual randomization, parallel groups) accounted for in the conduct and analysis of the trial?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											
SIGN Grade: 1-
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: EM + JG		Date: 5/02/2020

[bookmark: _GoBack]Author: Draper et al. 	Year: 2018 

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	□
	□
	✓
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	□
	□
	✓
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	✓
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include  ✓	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 3


JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: CD + IH 				Date: 	17/07/2019	


Author:	Fry	Year:  2018  	 


	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	□
	

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	□
	□
	
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	□
	
	□
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	□
	
	□
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
The reliability and validity of the survey was not formally explored however two emergency nurse clinicians (one with extensive research expertise) checked the face validity of the survey.


SIGN Grade: 2- 


JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Qualitative Research 
Reviewer: CD + CK		Date:	06/08/219	
Author:		Granek et al		Year:	2017

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Is there congruity between the stated philosophical perspective and the research methodology?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the research question or objectives?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the methods used to collect data?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the representation and analysis of data?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the interpretation of results?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Is there a statement locating the researcher culturally or theoretically?
	□
	□
	□
	

	7. Is the influence of the researcher on the research, and vice- versa, addressed?
	□
	□
	□
	

	8. Are participants, and their voices, adequately represented?
	□
	□
	
	□

	9. Is the research ethical according to current criteria or, for recent studies, and is there evidence of ethical approval by an appropriate body?
	
	□
	□
	□

	10. Do the conclusions drawn in the research report flow from the analysis, or interpretation, of the data?
	□
	
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											

SIGN Grade: 3

JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: EM  + JG					Date: 23/07/2019


Author:	Jiao				Year: 2014 		 


	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	✓
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	✓
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  ✓	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											


SIGN Grade: 3


JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: EM + CK 			Date: 24/07/2019 


Author: Lee et al 		Year: 2019		Record Number		     


	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	□
	

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	
	□
	□
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											


SIGN Grade: 3
Mixed Methods Appraisal Tool (MMAT), version 2018
Reviewer: EM + CK					Date: 25/07/2019
Author: Manning et al .				Year: 2017 				 
	Category of study designs
	Methodological quality criteria
	Responses

	
	
	Yes
	No
	Can’t tell
	Comments

	Screening questions  (for all types) 
S1
	S1. Are there clear research questions?
	
	
	
	

	
	S2. Do the collected data allow to address the research questions?
	
	
	
	

	
	Further appraisal may not be feasible or appropriate when the answer is ‘No’ or ‘Can’t tell’ to one or both screening questions.

	1. Qualitative
	1.1. Is the qualitative approach appropriate to answer the research question?
	
	
	
	

	
	1.2. Are the qualitative data collection methods adequate to address the research question?
	
	
	
	

	
	1.3. Are the findings adequately derived from the data?
	
	
	
	

	
	1.4. Is the interpretation of results sufficiently substantiated by data?
	
	
	
	

	
	1.5. Is there coherence between qualitative data sources, collection, analysis and interpretation?
	
	
	
	

	2. Quantitative randomized controlled trials
	2.1. Is randomization appropriately performed?
	
	
	
	

	
	2.2. Are the groups comparable at baseline?
	
	
	
	

	
	2.3. Are there complete outcome data?
	
	
	
	

	
	2.4. Are outcome assessors blinded to the intervention provided?
	
	
	
	

	
	2.5 Did the participants adhere to the assigned intervention?
	
	
	
	

	3. Quantitative nonrandomized  
	3.1. Are the participants representative of the target population?
	
	
	
	

	
	3.2. Are measurements appropriate regarding both the outcome and intervention (or exposure)?
	
	
	
	

	
	3.3. Are there complete outcome data?
	
	
	
	

	
	3.4. Are the confounders accounted for in the design and analysis?
	
	
	
	

	
	3.5. During the study period, is the intervention administered (or exposure occurred) as intended?
	
	
	
	

	4. Quantitative descriptive
	4.1. Is the sampling strategy relevant to address the research question?
	
	
	
	

	
	4.2. Is the sample representative of the target population?
	
	
	
	

	
	4.3. Are the measurements appropriate?
	
	
	
	

	
	4.4. Is the risk of nonresponse bias low?
	
	
	
	

	
	4.5. Is the statistical analysis appropriate to answer the research question?
	
	
	
	

	5. Mixed method
	5.1. Is there an adequate rationale for using a mixed methods design to address the research question?
	
	
	
	

	
	5.2. Are the different components of the study effectively integrated to answer the research question?
	
	
	
	

	
	5.3. Are the outputs of the integration of qualitative and quantitative components adequately interpreted?
	
	
	
	

	
	5.4. Are divergences and inconsistencies between quantitative and qualitative results adequately addressed?
	
	
	
	

	
	5.5. Do the different components of the study adhere to the quality criteria of each tradition of the methods involved?
	
	
	
	


SIGN Grade: 3
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Quasi-Experimental Studies 
(non-randomized experimental studies)
Reviewer: EM + MS 				Date: 25/07/2019 

Author: McFaul et al. 		Year: 2014		

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	14. Is it clear in the study what is the ‘cause’ and what is the ‘effect’ (i.e. there is no confusion about which variable comes first)?
	
	□
	□
	□

	15. Were the participants included in any comparisons similar? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	16. Were the participants included in any comparisons receiving similar treatment/care, other than the exposure or intervention of interest?
	□
	□
	□
	

	17. Was there a control group?
	□
	
	□
	□

	18. Were there multiple measurements of the outcome both pre and post the intervention/exposure?
	
	□
	□
	□

	19. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	□
	□
	
	□

	20. Were the outcomes of participants included in any comparisons measured in the same way? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	21. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	□
	□
	
	□

	22. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 2- 



JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Qualitative Research 
Reviewer: EM + MS				Date: 24/07/2019
Author: Michail and Tait 		Year: 2016 		
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Is there congruity between the stated philosophical perspective and the research methodology?
	□
	□
	
	□

	2. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the research question or objectives?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the methods used to collect data?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the representation and analysis of data?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Is there congruity between the research methodology and the interpretation of results?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Is there a statement locating the researcher culturally or theoretically?
	
	□
	□
	□

	7. Is the influence of the researcher on the research, and vice- versa, addressed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Are participants, and their voices, adequately represented?
	
	□
	□
	□

	9. Is the research ethical according to current criteria or, for recent studies, and is there evidence of ethical approval by an appropriate body?
	
	□
	□
	□

	10. Do the conclusions drawn in the research report flow from the analysis, or interpretation, of the data?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											

SIGN Grade: 3
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: EM + IH 			Date: 24/07/2017


Author: Michail et al. 		Year: 2017 		 


	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	□
	

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	
	□
	□
	□

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	□
	□
	
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  □	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 3




JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Quasi-Experimental Studies 
(non-randomized experimental studies)
Reviewer: EM + IH				Date: 25/07/2019 

Author: Painter et al. 			Year: 2018 		
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	23. Is it clear in the study what is the ‘cause’ and what is the ‘effect’ (i.e. there is no confusion about which variable comes first)?
	
	□
	□
	□

	24. Were the participants included in any comparisons similar? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	25. Were the participants included in any comparisons receiving similar treatment/care, other than the exposure or intervention of interest?
	□
	□
	
	□

	26. Was there a control group?
	□
	
	□
	□

	27. Were there multiple measurements of the outcome both pre and post the intervention/exposure?
	
	□
	□
	□

	28. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	□
	□
	
	□

	29. Were the outcomes of participants included in any comparisons measured in the same way? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	30. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	□
	□
	
	□

	31. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include		Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 2-

JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Quasi-Experimental Studies 
(non-randomized experimental studies)
Reviewer: EM + IH					Date: 25/07/2019

Author: Prabhakar et al.		Year: 2014			

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Is it clear in the study what is the ‘cause’ and what is the ‘effect’ (i.e. there is no confusion about which variable comes first)?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the participants included in any comparisons similar? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Were the participants included in any comparisons receiving similar treatment/care, other than the exposure or intervention of interest?
	□
	□
	□
	

	4. Was there a control group?
	□
	
	□
	□

	5. Were there multiple measurements of the outcome both pre and post the intervention/exposure?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	□
	□
	
	□

	7. Were the outcomes of participants included in any comparisons measured in the same way? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	□
	
	□
	□

	9. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  □	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 2-
JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Analytical Cross Sectional Studies 
Reviewer: CD + CK		Date:	06/08/2019	


Author: Shah 			Year: 2016 

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Were the criteria for inclusion in the sample clearly defined?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the study subjects and the setting described in detail?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Was the exposure measured in a valid and reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were objective, standard criteria used for measurement of the condition?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were confounding factors identified?
	□
	□
	□
	

	6. Were strategies to deal with confounding factors stated?
	□
	□
	□
	

	7. Were the outcomes measured in a valid and reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
																						
											


SIGN Grade: 2- 




JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Quasi-Experimental Studies 
(non-randomized experimental studies)
Reviewer: CD + CK	Date:	22/07/2019	

Author	Siau et al. 	Year: 	2018	 

	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	Not applicable

	1. Is it clear in the study what is the ‘cause’ and what is the ‘effect’ (i.e. there is no confusion about which variable comes first)?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Were the participants included in any comparisons similar? 
	□
	
	□
	□

	3. Were the participants included in any comparisons receiving similar treatment/care, other than the exposure or intervention of interest?
	□
	
	□
	□

	4. Was there a control group?
	
	□
	□
	□

	5. Were there multiple measurements of the outcome both pre and post the intervention/exposure?
	
	□
	□
	□

	6. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	□
	□
	
	□

	7. Were the outcomes of participants included in any comparisons measured in the same way? 
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	9. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: ______2-_________

JBI Critical Appraisal Checklist for Randomized Controlled Trials
Reviewer: CD + CK			 Date:	22/07/2019
Author:	 VanLandschoot 		Year:	2017	
	
	Yes
	No
	Unclear
	NA

	1. Was true randomization used for assignment of participants to treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	2. Was allocation to treatment groups concealed?
	
	□
	□
	□

	3. Were treatment groups similar at the baseline?
	
	□
	□
	□

	4. Were participants blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	
	□
	□

	5. Were those delivering treatment blind to treatment assignment? 
	□
	
	□
	□

	6. Were outcomes assessors blind to treatment assignment?
	□
	
	□
	□

	7. Were treatment groups treated identically other than the intervention of interest?
	
	□
	□
	□

	8. Was follow up complete and if not, were differences between groups in terms of their follow up adequately described and analyzed?
	□
	□
	
	□

	9. Were participants analyzed in the groups to which they were randomized?
	□
	□
	
	□

	10. Were outcomes measured in the same way for treatment groups?
	
	□
	□
	□

	11. Were outcomes measured in a reliable way?
	
	□
	□
	□

	12. Was appropriate statistical analysis used?
	
	□
	□
	□

	13. Was the trial design appropriate, and any deviations from the standard RCT design (individual randomization, parallel groups) accounted for in the conduct and analysis of the trial?
	
	□
	□
	□


Overall appraisal: 	Include	  	Exclude	  □	Seek further info  □
Comments (Including reason for exclusion)
											
											
											

SIGN Grade: 1-
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Appendix 1. 


List of targeted websites and agencies included in the grey literature searches


.


 


Country / Organisation 


 


Website link


 


Ireland


 


Mental Health Commission Ireland


 


www.mhcirl.ie/


 


National Suicide Research 


Foundation


 


www.nsrf.ie


 


 


National Office for Suicide Prevention


 


www.hse.ie/eng/services/list/4/mental


-


health


-


services/nosp/


 


Health Information Quality Authority 


 


www.hiqa.ie


 


 


Australia


 


Department of Health Australia


 


www.health.gov.au


 


 


Suicide Prevention Australia


 


www.suicidepreventionaust.org/


 


Australian


 


Institute


 


for Suicide Research and 


Prevention


 


www.griffith.edu.au/griffith


-


health/austra


lian


-


institute


-


suicide


-


research


-


prevention


 


Mental Health Commission Australia


 


www.mentalhealthcommission.gov.au/


 


 


Analysis and Policy Observatory


 


https://apo.org.au/


 


 


Canada


 


Department


 


of Health Canada


 


www.canada.ca/en/health


-


canada.html


 


 


Canadian Association for Suicide Prevention


 


www.suic


ideprevention.ca/


 


 


Centre for Suicide Prevention Canada


 


www.suicideinfo.ca/


 


 


Canadian Electronic Library


 


https://my.canadianelectroniclibrary.ca/


 


 


United


 


Kingdom


 


Department of Health and Social Care UK


 


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisa


tions/department


-


of


-


health


-


and


-


social


-


care


 


National Suicide Prevention


 


Alliance UK


 


https://www.nspa.org.uk/


 


 


Centre for Suicide Research (Oxford)


 


https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/csr


 


National Health Service (NHS) Evidence da


tabase


 


https://www.evidence.nhs.uk/


 


 


New Zealand


 


Ministry of Health New Zealand


 


 


www.health.govt.nz


 


 


Ministry of Social development New Zealand


 


 


www.msd.govt.nz


 


 


USA


 


US Office of Disease Prevention and Health 


Promotion 


 


www.health.gov/about


-


us


 


 


US National


 


Institute


 


of Health 


 


w


ww.nih.gov


  


 


Centres for Disease Control 


and Prevention 


 


www.cdc.gov


 


 


American Psychological Society


 


 


www.apa.org


 


 


Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality 


(AHRQ)


 


https://www.ahrq.gov/


 


 


 


 




1       Appendix 1.  List of targeted websites and agencies included in the grey literature searches .  

Country / Organisation   Website link  

Ireland  

Mental Health Commission Ireland  www.mhcirl.ie/  

National Suicide Research  Foundation  www.nsrf.ie    

National Office for Suicide Prevention  www.hse.ie/eng/services/list/4/mental - health - services/nosp/  

Health Information Quality Authority   www.hiqa.ie    

Australia  

Department of Health Australia  www.health.gov.au    

Suicide Prevention Australia  www.suicidepreventionaust.org/  

Australian   Institute   for Suicide Research and  Prevention  www.griffith.edu.au/griffith - health/austra lian - institute - suicide - research - prevention  

Mental Health Commission Australia  www.mentalhealthcommission.gov.au/    

Analysis and Policy Observatory  https://apo.org.au/    

Canada  

Department   of Health Canada  www.canada.ca/en/health - canada.html    

Canadian Association for Suicide Prevention  www.suic ideprevention.ca/    

Centre for Suicide Prevention Canada  www.suicideinfo.ca/    

Canadian Electronic Library  https://my.canadianelectroniclibrary.ca/    

United   Kingdom  

Department of Health and Social Care UK  https://www.gov.uk/government/organisa tions/department - of - health - and - social - care  

National Suicide Prevention   Alliance UK  https://www.nspa.org.uk/    

Centre for Suicide Research (Oxford)  https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/csr  

National Health Service (NHS) Evidence da tabase  https://www.evidence.nhs.uk/    

New Zealand  

Ministry of Health New Zealand    www.health.govt.nz    

Ministry of Social development New Zealand    www.msd.govt.nz    

USA  

US Office of Disease Prevention and Health  Promotion   www.health.gov/about - us    

US National   Institute   of Health   w ww.nih.gov     

Centres for Disease Control  and Prevention   www.cdc.gov    

American Psychological Society    www.apa.org    

Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality  (AHRQ)  https://www.ahrq.gov/    

   

